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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Deep River Pioneer Lutheran Church, constructed in 1902, remains

in good condition today after the completion of recent restoration work.
The church is located about two miles north of the junction of East
Deep River County Road and State Route #4. The county road passes dir-
ectly in front of the church, and a road opposite the building leads a
short distance up a hill to an old cemetery.

The church stands basically unchanged today. The building is of wood
construction; is 26 feg;,vide, 46 feet long, and 18 feet high; and has
a high steeple with dome. Mathew Anderson, an early member of the con-
gregation, donated a toned church bell which remains in the tower. A
cedar picket fence originally enclosed the church and lawn, but has
since been replaced by a barbed wire fence.

The building has three arched windows high on each side, double ornate
doors in front, and similar swinging doors immediately inside. The pews
are well made and in good condition. The church has no sacristy or
choir loft. The high, wine-glass type pulpit was copied by one of the
builders after a pulpit in a church he had attended in childhood. The
church also has a circular altér rail, and a beautiful oil painting on
the alter wall depicting Jesus on the steps of Mary and Martha's home.
This mural was painted by Reverend Hannes Leiviska, an early pastor,

who presented it to the church.

A small mamal organ, one of the best made at the time, has deteriorated
and is no longer usable. The wood-burning stove is still functional.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Deep River congregation, comprised mostly of pioneer settlers who
had migrated from Finland, was organized in 1894, eight years before
the church was built. This active group held meetings in homes and
schoolhouses, and was served by the minister of the Astoria, Oregon,
Finnish Evangelical Lutheran Church on a once-a-month schedule.

The site on which the church was built was donated at the turn-of-the
century by Erik Maunula, a local farmer who was also a skilled mechanic
and engineer. Maunula's inventions were used in the salmon canneries
at Astoria, Oregon, to where he later moved. The church was completed
in 1902, and immediately became the social center of the surrounding
rural community.

Through the years, however, the congregation of the church gradually
decreased to only a handful of members. Meanwhile, the Naselle Lutheran
Church, located about eight miles to the west and served by the same
minister, had become very active. Eventually, the two congregations were
combined and the Deep River Church was used only for occasional special
services, Christmas programs, memorials, and funerals. The building
received no care and soon had broken windows, a leaking roof, boards

torn off the outside, and cattle roaming through the yard.

The nearby town of Rosburg made attempts to purchase whatever usable
lumber that could be had from the Deep River Church to rebuild a burned
community hall. A few remaining descendants of the original Deep River
congregation became alarmed and appealed to the Naselle Lutheran Church
which owned the building. As a consequence, the Naselle congregation
deeded the church to the concerned group, now known as the Deep River
Cemetery Association, Inc.

The Church needed immediate repairs and the Deep River Cemetery Asso-
ciation had little funds. Despite this, the group proceeded ahead. The
leaking roof was repaired at once by professional roofers who installed
asphalt material. The leaning steeple was straightened and missing
ornamental cedar shingles were replaced.

The Church leaned toward the right altar wall, and the exterior paint
was peeling. Also, the original porch was gone. The congregation hired
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Minutes of yearly meetings and records of congregational meetings of
the Deep River Evangelical Lutheran Church, from inception to the time

Lutheran Church. These minute books
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Pioneer Lutheran Church.
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#8 - Significance
Deep River Pioneer Lutheran Church

a professional builder who, with volunteer assistance, put in concrete
foundation blocks, new foundation timbers, and straightened the building.
This builder also erected a new porch, which was identical to the ori-
ginal as revealed in old Sunday school photographs. Men were hired to
paint the building, and the colors used were as close to the original

as could be determined. The dome was painted gold, but the congregation
felt this was not quite the proper tone because the steeple did not glit-
ter in the sun as their descendants had described it.

The interior of the Church retained the original paint. A gifted local
craftsman had painted the inside when the Church was built, and the
colors had held well, although mellowing some. This same painter also
had been the first to paint the exterior.

In 1969, before the local members celebrated the 75th anniversary of
the founding of the congregation, the chairs and organ were varnished,
and the entrance hall floor and two benches were painted. The small
rest room building, located in the rear of the Church yard, was com-
pletely dismantled and replaced by a new one with similar proportions
and style. The lumber for this structure was donated.

The building still has no running water, nor electricity. Water for
cleaning was obtained from a small spring at the nearby roadside and
hot water was brought in large milk cans. Through the years, the lawn
has been mowed by volunteers.

The Deep River Pioneer Lutheran Church is a landmark in this quiet

rural valley, and is the only Church remaining in the community. The
building typifies the simple Gothic-~revival style of church architecture
that was once popular in much of rural America. Many churches which
were built in this style have, of course, been razed in recent times,
but the future of the Deep River Church is secure. This Church has
been a focal point for the history of the local area, and serves to
bind the community together in not only the religious sphere, but also
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